Question and Answers #3 (numbering continued from previous Q&A document)

The below questions and answers are for clarification purposes only and do not represent changes to
the solicitation. All changes in the solicitation shall be made in the form of an amendment.

IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF CONTRACTORS TO REVIEW QUESTION AND ANSWER DOCUMENTS
POSTED TO THE SOLICITATION. DUPLICATE QUESTIONS AND/OR THOSE DETERMINED TO HAVE BEEN
SUFFICIENTLY ADDRESSED IN PREVIOUS DOCUMENTS MAY NOT APPEAR BELOW.

QUESTION 54

Labor Categories and Qualifications: Kindly let us know which all labor categories will fall under DoD
8570 Workforce Improvement Program. Additionally, please also identify the levels at IAT level |, Il and
[l of those LCs.

ANSWER 54

All Labor categories may be subject to this based on the individual task orders. See Security levels in
table added to section H in the RFP and part of Answer 55 below.

QUESTION 55

Issue: Amendment 0002, Section 3, page 9 of 32 requirements states “Security requirements are at a
minimum: background investigation, NACLC for IT Level Il access, SSBI for IT Level | access, and up to
Secret, NATO Secret, and Top Secret.” Could the Government clarify its intent on when they will release
information that aligns the labor categories outlined in Section L.5 with the determination of the IT (and
IAT) level assigned?



ANSWER 55

Please refer to answer 29 on the “Question and Answer 2” document regarding security levels. The chart
below shows the estimated security access levels based on labor category. Depending on the
requirement of the task order, access level may adjust downward as required. Offerors are allowed to
propose higher access levels than those identified below.

Labor Category Access Level IT-I Access Level IT-1I Access Level IT-llI

Application Developer X
Business Process Engineering Specialist X
Communication Analyst X
Data Services Developer X
Database Manager/ Administrator X

Graphics Designer X
High Performance Computing System Architect X

Information Assurance System Specialist X

Lab Services Technician X
Learning Management Systems Technician X
Linux System Administrator X

Mobile Device Application Developer X
Network and Infrastructure Technician X

Network Architect and Integration X

Network Engineer X

Network System Administrator X

Service Center Specialist X
Service Center Technician X
Visualization Technician X
Vulnerability/ Threat Specialist X

Web Architect X
Web Content Manager X
Web Designer X

QUESTION 56

Section L 2.7 states, “The proposal must convey evidence the offeror understands all RFP and PWS
requirements and their interrelationships. ...must state how all RFP and PWS requirements will be met

Section M4.1.1 states, “Government will evaluate the technical approach to determine the offerors’
overall understanding and capability to successfully provide required services ... in the following 14
critical support categories including applications, computer network defense, learning management
systems, multimedia educational technologies, virtualization, network and infrastructure maintenance,
network engineering, enterprise architecture, service center services, client hardware and lab services,
enterprise information, system architecture, system administration, and visualization services.”



The two lists don’t align. “System Architecture” is not included in the Section C Requirements, and four
Section C Requirements are not included in the evaluation Criteria section 4.1.1 (3.2 Mobile Application
Development, 3.3 Web Applications, 3.14 High Performance Computing (HPC), and 3.17 Business
Operations Branch). Could the Government please clarify?

ANSWER 56

Amendment 0004 has aligned the two documents.

QUESTION 57

Since the RFP section L.5.3.8 (page 30 of 32 of Amendment 02) states that subcontractors may be
proposed at a T&M rate, may T&M-based major subcontractors be considered compliant if they do not
have a DCAA pre-award audit?

ANSWER 57

See language in Amendment 0003 Section M 6.0.

QUESTION 58

Section L.2.1. Should the offer and signature page be included in the same document as the Technical
Proposal or should “Offer” and “Technical” be separated into two different documents as part of
Volume I?

ANSWER 58

Please refer to answer 21 on the “Question and Answer 2” document. Please ensure previous Q&A
documents are being reviewed prior to submission of RFP questions to reduce the number of repetitive
guestions. They are separate volumes.

QUESTION 59

Section L 2.1. Can Volumes Il and Il include Tables of Contents, and if so, are they exclusive of page
count?

ANSWER 59
A table of contents is exclusive of the page count is all volumes.
QUESTION 60

Section L 2.1. Can Volumes |, I, and lll include cover pages, and if so, are they exclusive of page count?



ANSWER 60

Please refer to answer 10 on the “Question and Answer 1” document. Please ensure previous Q&A
documents are being reviewed prior to submission of RFP questions to reduce the number of repetitive
questions.

QUESTION 61

Section L.2.1 (chart) Are offerors required to submit soft copies on a CD along with the hard copies AND
an electronic (soft) copy via email to the contracting officer? If the CD is required, should the files
contain multiple copies of each section as required in hard copy?

ANSWER 61

Please refer to answer 36 on the “Question and Answer 2” document. Please ensure previous Q&A
documents are being reviewed prior to submission of RFP questions to reduce the number of repetitive
questions.

QUESTION 62

In Section L.3.3.4, the RFP states, “Offerors should document how the work that it has done is similar in
size and scope to the work outlined in the PWS.” Does the term offeror refer to the prime contractor
and subcontractors?

ANSWER 62

Please refer to answer 20 on the “Question and Answer 2” document. The Offeror are those performing
the task under the proposal submitted. The offeror is the entity providing the proposal. It's up to the
prime to convey in its proposal the efforts of sub- contractors. The sections updated for clarification
through amendment 000 4.

QUESTION 63

Section L.3.3.4 (lines 6-7) references Leaning Management System (LMS) Services Support as a key PWS
area twice. Did the Government intend to reference an additional key PWS area?

ANSWER 63

This is an administrative error. Amendment 0004 has removed the redundant LMS in Section L. 3.3.4.
QUESTION 64

Section L.4.1 (lines 12-13) state that the “Offeror should document how the work that it has done is
similar in size and scope to the work outlined in the PWS”. Since the contemplated contract is an IDIQ

task order based vehicle, the size of the work is unknown. Should the offeror provide information on
similar work performed on task orders for IDIQ vehicles?



ANSWER 64

The offeror can provide any evidence it’s performed on tasks dealing with the general scope of the
sections of the PWS and level effort provided in section L 5.2.2. This can be on any form of contract or
task order.

QUESTION 65
Section L 4.3. Should the “references” include the OPPD evaluator for each Past Performance contract?
ANSWER 65

Yes they should be included to allow the Navy the opportunity to contact all references the offeror
identifies.

QUESTION 66

Section L.4.3. Please specify exactly what should be included for each Past Performance applicable to
“other identifying information.”

ANSWER 66

Aside from the information already specified in Section L4.3, the language allows offerors the
opportunity to present alternate methods it may know as a better method for the Navy to reach its
identified references.

QUESTION 67

Section L.5.3.14 —Is the DD form 1547 mandatory?

ANSWER 67

The language of the RFP does not make this a mandatory submission.
QUESTION 68

Section L - Instructions, Conditions and Notices to Bidders, 2.0 Proposal Format and Content, “Hard
copies must be mailed and received by the RFP closing date identified. HAND DELIVERED COPIES OF THE
PROPOSAL WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED.” Is the contractor correct in assuming that the Navy is referring
specifically to the United States Postal Service (USPS) mail as opposed to a private service such as FedEx
or UPS? If so, will the Navy consider the postmark in deciding whether a proposal has been submitted
on time? This would be relevant if the proposal were mailed via USPS in a timely manner but is delayed
in reaching the Navy through no fault of the contractor?

ANSWER 68



Proposing contractors can choose private or public mail service as they desire. Proposals must be
RECEIVED by the government by the response date and time provided in the RFP. Simply having the
proposal postmarked by the response date does not suffice in meeting the response date requirement.

QUESTION 69

Section L - Instructions, Conditions and Notices to Bidders, subsections 3.3.1 and 3.3.2 of Sub-factor (1)
Technical Approach are very similar.

3.3.1 Demonstrate that they are capable of fulfilling requirements of all three Naval Higher Education
Information Technology Consortium (NHEIT): Naval Postgraduate School, Monterey, CA; Naval War
College, Newport, Rl;, and Naval Academy, Annapolis, MD; and,

3.3.2 Offerors must demonstrate they are capable of fulfilling requirements at all three geographic
areas. Geographic areas of the Naval Higher Education Information Technology Consortium (NHEITC)
which includes Naval Postgraduate School, Monterey, CA, Naval War College, Newport, Rl, and the Naval
Academy, Annapolis, MD.,

Can the Government please explain how the two requirements are different and what is expected in
response to each?

ANSWER 69

Please refer to answer 41 on the “Question and Answer 2” document. Please ensure previous Q&A
documents are being reviewed prior to submission of RFP questions to reduce the number of repetitive
questions.

QUESTION 70

Section L - Contractor Labor Categories, 5.2.1 does not include labor categories for program manager or
project manager. Will the Government consider adding additional labor categories for program
manager and project manager?

ANSWER 70

Please refer to answer 19 on the “Question and Answer 2” document. Please ensure previous Q&A
documents are being reviewed prior to submission of RFP questions to reduce the number of repetitive
questions.

QUESTION 71

Section M, 4.1.2 Sub factor (2) Management Approach sets forth evaluation criteria for management of
the Naval Higher Education Information Technology Consortium support services; however there are no
labor categories in the solicitation related to program or project management. Can our management
approach at the basic contract level include key labor categories that are not included in the
solicitation?



ANSWER 71

The Offeror can identify any key personnel it feels necessary to perform the terms of the RFP and it
unique technical proposal. The Navy does not intend to reimburse directly programmatic support under
this effort.

QUESTION 72
Reference — Amendment 2, Page 24 of 32, Section 3.1.

The proposal table included in Section 2.1 discusses the submission of the offer and signature pagesin a
volume entitled Offer. Section 3.1 states that the offer and signature page are to be included in Volume
1 — Technical Proposal. Should the offer and signature page be provided both as a separate volume
entitled Offer and with Volume 1 — Technical Proposal?

ANSWER 72

Please refer to answer 21 on the “Question and Answer 2” document. Please ensure previous Q&A
documents are being reviewed prior to submission of RFP questions to reduce the number of repetitive
questions.

QUESTION 73
Reference — Amendment 2, Page 26 of 32, Section 4.3.

This paragraph states that in addition to the OPPD, the proposal shall include a one to two page
document with potential references and additional project information. This can be interpreted as
meaning Volume 2 should include the OPPD and the one to two page document about past
performance projects. Can the Government please clarify that the OPPDs do not need to be included in
Volume 2 since the earlier guidance in Section 4.2 states completed OPPDs should be emailed directly to
the contact provided.

ANSWER 73

The OPPDs do not have to be included as part of the volume. The Government’s intent is to receive
them directly from the offerors references. In the event the offeror is in receipt of an OPPD for some
reason and it included it in the volume the OPPD will not be counted against the page limitation.

QUESTION 74

Reference — Amendment 2, Page 23 of 32, Section 2.1 and Amendment 2, Page 26 of 32, Sections 4.3,
4.5, and 4.6.

The proposal table included in Section 2.1 states that Volume 2 — Past Performance should only be 2
pages exclusive of the OPPD. However, Sections 4.5 and 4.6 state that offerors may provide past
performance information regarding key personnel with relevant experience, subcontractors, and
contract performance. Can the Government please clarify that the page count for Volume 2 remains as
only two pages for the inclusion of all the items listed in Sections 4.3, 4.5, and 4.6?



ANSWER 74
Yes.
QUESTION 75

Reference: RFP paragraph 5.2.3 states: “(the contractor will have to prorate these hours based on the
performance periods of the CLINS in section B)”

Question: Can the government clarify what is meant by this? This offeror could not locate any specific
dates for the period of performance for the CLINS in section B.

ANSWER 75

Please see the original solicitation for performance periods for the CLINS in section B are located in
section F IAW the standard uniform contract format.

QUESTION 76

Reference: RFP Section C, 3.11 Service Center Support Services

Question: Please describe the specific task for Service Center Support Services Level 3.
ANSWER 76

The RFP contemplates a multiple award IDIQ and the PWS reflects this. The Section C 3.11 like the other
sections provides only a general scope with limited performance standard. The individual task orders
shall provide specific tasks. Specific tasks will be identified at the task order level. Proposal should
demonstrate that the contractor is capable of providing the general services identified in the PWS
section 3.11.

QUESTION 77
Reference: RFP N00244-16-R-0009 (Amend #2)

RFP Sections C & L — Task Order Contract Types: The RFP, as amended references two task order types
FFP and CPFF. However, the Section B CLINs only reflect CPFF (labor) and Cost Reimbursable (ODCs)
CLINs. Furthermore, Sections D, E, F, G, H and |, do not reflect expected Fixed Price clauses. Will the
RFP be amended or will the FFP task orders contain the FFP clauses? Please clarify.

ANSWER 77
Please refer to answer 31 on the “Question and Answer 2” document. Should an FFP task order be

issued, they would contain the applicable FFP clauses. Please ensure previous Q&A documents are being
reviewed prior to submission of RFP questions to reduce the number of repetitive questions.



QUESTION 78
Amendment 2 Section L 2.0/2.1 page 23 of 32 requires that the hard copy proposal shall be mailed to:

NAVSUP Fleet Logistics Center San Diego (FLCSD)
Regional Contracts Department, Code 230
ATTN: Mike Oliva, Phone #: 619-556-7201

3985 Cummings Road, Bldg 116, 3rd Floor

San Diego, CA 92136-4200

Is it the Government’s intent that ONLY US MAIL delivery is the acceptable means for delivery of the
hard copy and CD? Or, if FedX and/or UPS deliveries are acceptable should this same address be used?

ANSWER 78

Please refer to answer 68 above. Regardless of the method of shipping the mailing address provided in
the RFP will remain the same. Please ensure previous Q&A documents are being reviewed prior to
submission of RFP questions to reduce the number of repetitive questions.

QUESTION 79

Amendment 2 Section L 2.0/2.1 page 23 of 32 requires that the hard copy proposal will include a “filled
out and signed copy of the original solicitation document and all amendments.” Does this requirement
extend to a filled out Section “B” CLIN Prices for Labor, Fee and Total CPFF? What about FFP CLINs and
Prices? Based on our review of the Performance Work Statement (PWS), it appears that the nature of
the work to be performed throughout the term of this IDIQ contract would not result in a performance
risk assessment that would support a solely CPFF contract type.

ANSWER 79

The Section B should be completed and the amendments should be signed. The CLIN structure of the
basic contract only contemplates pricing as a CPFF. However, the terms of the contract allow the basic
contract CPFF CLINS to accommodate both the placement of CPFF orders and FFP orders. See ordering
and reporting requirements of specified in eth RFP.

QUESTION 80

We intend to satisfy the RFP staffing requirement using a combination of site (region) specific direct
labor rates for both the prime contractor and proposed subcontractors. There will be no single “Direct
Labor Rate” for the entire contract for any labor category.

The Attachment 3 — Cost Template (xIsx format) requires completion of the worksheet tab named
“Direct Labor,” to include only one direct labor rate per year for each labor category. To meet the intent
of this spreadsheet, suggest the government require one “Direct Labor” worksheet tab for each
performance location for the Prime Contractor, and a corresponding worksheet tab from each
subcontractor for each location. The summation of all of the hours from each of these worksheets
would then satisfy the requirement as expressed on Line 31 instructions.



Is this an acceptable approach to meeting the requirement in this worksheet, or alternately describe
how this requirement is intended to be met when there are multiple subcontractors and multiple work
locations for which pricing data are required?

ANSWER 80

The RFP does require a spreadsheet for each of the subcontractor if proposed. All spreadsheets of
subcontractors and primes when totaled should meet the hours requested by the RFP. Additionally,
please review attachments 3 to the RFP, the hours are specified by location already. If the Labor rate
fluctuations for any given category the offeror will have to separate the hours accordingly ensuring it
meets the total requested hours for each category. See answer 24 posted with the RFP.

QUESTION 81

The Q & A published alludes to ceiling rates for labor rates. How will the Government capture these
rates in the resulting contract, given the likely mix of prime contractor and subcontractor rates?

ANSWER 81

It is normally captured through the incorporation of the successful offerors proposals into the resulting
contract.

QUESTION 82

Will the government consider adding a Project Manager labor category that can be utilized at the task
order level?

ANSWER 82

Please refer to answer 19 on the “Question and Answer 2” document. Please ensure previous Q&A
documents are being reviewed prior to submission of RFP questions to reduce the number of repetitive
questions.

QUESTION 83

Volume | has a page limit of 85 pages. The whole proposal is to be mailed as well as submitted to the
contract specialist via email delivery. Can you please advise the maximum file size that will be accepted
by the contracting office via an email transmittal?

ANSWER 83
Please refer to answer 36 on the “Question and Answer 2” document. Please ensure previous Q&A

documents are being reviewed prior to submission of RFP questions to reduce the number of repetitive
questions.



QUESTION 84

As the solicitation does not allow for hand deliveries, if the carrier service is unsuccessful in making a
timely delivery, will the government consider the email submittal as acceptable for timely delivery of our
proposal? If not, will the government reconsider accepting hand deliveries?

ANSWER 84

Please refer to answer 36 on the “Question and Answer 2” document. It is the contractors responsibility
to ensure ample time is allowed to ensure proposals are received by the government by the response
date required in the RFP. Hand delivery of proposals will not be allowed. Please ensure previous Q&A
documents are being reviewed prior to submission of RFP questions to reduce the number of repetitive
questions.

QUESTION 85

If we designate a subcontractor as a non-major subcontractor, can they never become a major
subcontractor?

ANSWER 85

No.

QUESTION 86

Is the $700,000.00 threshold for subcontractors to be considered a Major Subcontractor for the life of
the contract or is the $700,000.00 for each option year?

ANSWER 86

It’s the life of the contract.

QUESTION 87

Should the need arise in the future, can subcontractors be added after award?

ANSWER 87

Upon contracting officer approval a subcontractor can be added during performance.

QUESTION 88

Is it mandatory to respond to each RFP, or RFQ, let by the NHEITC?

ANSWER 88

Contractors that receive award under this MAC are encouraged to propose on a majority of task order

requirements. Should a contractor choose not to bid, it is requested that a “No Bid” email notification
be provided to the Contract Specialist processing the requirement explaining why they have chosen to



to compete. Please note that should there be a systemic amount of “no bid” responses to task order
requirements, the government has the option to drop that contractor when exercising the option
period. Please review Section H “Ramping”.

QUESTION 89

There are two different Volumes | listed; Offer and Technical. Are we to submit a Volume | - “Offer” that
contains all 62 pages of the solicitation and the three amendments, and submit a second Volume | titled
“Technical” with a page limit of 85 pages?

ANSWER 89

Please refer to answer 21 on the “Question and Answer 2” document. Please ensure previous Q&A
documents are being reviewed prior to submission of RFP questions to reduce the number of repetitive
questions.

QUESTION 90

Confirming that one ”soft” electronic copy must be sent to Michael Oliva; in addition to the CD that
contains Volumes I-Offer, Volumes I-Technical, Volumes lI-Past Performance and Volumes IlI-Pricing.

ANSWER 90

Please refer to answer 36 on the “Question and Answer 2” document. Please ensure previous Q&A
documents are being reviewed prior to submission of RFP questions to reduce the amount of repetitive
questions.

QUESTION 91

Is there a specific CD that needs to be utilized for the submission (CDR, CDRW, DVD +R, DVD -R)?

ANSWER 91

Any of the CD formats listed above are acceptable as long a they can be opened on standard Microsoft
widows CD/DVD reading device.

QUESTION 92

In Volume I, Do we need to list the OPPDs that we submitted to Past Performance References, and a
separate list of relevant past performances that were not submitted as an OPPD?

ANSWER 92
Please refer to answer 9 from “Question and Answer 1” and answer 17, 38 on the “Question and

Answer 2” document relating to OPPD. Please ensure previous Q&A documents are reviewed prior to
submission of RFP questions to reduce the amount of repetitive questions.



QUESTION 93

Does the Attachment 3 — Cost Template provided by the Gov’t satisfy the requirements for this section?
QUESTION 94

Yes.

QUESTION 95

The Cost Template has a Direct Labor tab that requires rates, but there is no geography attached to this
tab. Is this tab supposed to hold the Composite/Weighted Average DLR from NPS, NWC and USNA?

ANSWER 95

See the different worksheets inside the excel file that separates the hours out by locations ( NPS, NWC
and USNA).
QUESTION 96

The Tabs ask for Employees Names per labor category, is it safe to assume that we don’t need to list a
name as it is a non-highlighted cell, and according to the directions, non-highlighted cells are ignored
(e.g. noinput)?

ANSWER 96

Please refer to answer 6 from “Question and Answer 1” document. Please ensure previous Q&A
documents are reviewed prior to submission of RFP questions to reduce the amount of repetitive
questions.

QUESTION 97

For the subcontractor cost proposal, does each subcontractor need to a) provide rates for each labor
category even if they may not supply personnel for the LC? and b) Provide a pricing narrative explaining
all aspects of direct/indirect rates (same as Prime)?

ANSWER 97

Please refer to answer 24 from “Question and Answer 2” document. Please ensure previous Q&A
documents are reviewed prior to submission of RFP questions to reduce the amount of repetitive
questions.

QUESTION 98
As this is a MAC IDIQ, and we are to provide Labor Rates, but make NO CHANGES to the labor hours, this

means every subcontractor would be above the $700K threshold and have to submit a sealed bid
directly to the COR. Is this the intent?



ANSWER 98
See answer 86 above.
QUESTION 99

The Cost Template is only setup to supply information for a CPFF type contract. But the RFP states that
(Section L 1.3) that “Each contract will provide for the issuance of Firm Fixed Price (FFP) or Cost Plus
Fixed Fee (CPFF) task orders; however, the Government intends to maximize the use of FFP task orders.”
Is there a separate Cost Template to provide information for FFP, since the FFP will be maximized during
the performance period?

ANSWER 99

Please refer to answer 31 from “Question and Answer 2” document. Please ensure previous Q&A
documents are reviewed prior to submission of RFP questions to reduce the amount of repetitive
questions.

QUESTION 100

With this being a MAC IDIQ, with only a $5,000 minimum order, the requirement to have subcontractors
submit sealed bids directly to COR seems unreasonable, as one cannot predict how much a
subcontractor will actually perform until TOs are let and awarded. If our subcontractors are not
“guaranteed” any work on the MAC IDIQ, then they are not required to submit “sealed bids,” correct?

ANSWER 100

The RFP requires subcontractors to submit sealed bids.

QUESTION 101

The labor categories listed do not delineate between a Jr, Mid or Sr labor category (e.g. Application
Developer is not broken out into Jr, Mid or Sr). Does this mean that the rate we list in each category
should be a weighted average of the Jr, Mid and Sr levels within that Labor Category (e.g. App Developer
Sr $100/hr, Mid $75/hr, Jr $50/hr = Weighted Ave DLR of $75/hr; based on 1 FTE per level)?

ANSWER 101

Offerors are allowed to develop a composite labor rate.

QUESTION 102

If we are supplying weighted averages for varying levels of experience for the different labor categories
(LCs), will we be able to submit higher rates for Sr LCs when Task Orders are let, based on need of the

TOs? (e.g. RFP Response of $75/hr for Application Developer DLR, TO #1 needs a Sr App Developer,
which would be submitted at $100/hr).



ANSWER 102

The RFP does not call different tiers for each category. Competition at the task order shall dictate the
quality of labor required.

QUESTION 103
Section B does not have separate CLIN’s identifying multiple locations/customer.

Question: Please clarify the use of CLIN’s and the management of task orders, as there are no CLIN’s
identified for separate locations.

ANSWER 103

Total costs hall be added for all locations in response to attachment 3 to reflect CLIN total costs for each
year and location.

QUESTION 104

In accordance with the solicitation on labor categories. There is no Program or Project Manager listed in
the solicitation.

Question: How does the government intend the contractor to manage project responsibilities based on
multiple site locations, and undetermined scope and magnitude of Task Orders?

ANSWER 104

Please refer to answers 19 from “Question and Answer 2” document. Please ensure previous Q&A
documents are reviewed prior to submission of RFP questions to reduce the amount of repetitive
questions.

QUESTION 105

In accordance with the solicitation on Ordering Instructions. There are no specifics with regards to task
order evaluation factors, estimated number of orders, and no discussion of fair opportunity procedures.

Question: Please provide specifics on the administration and awarding of task orders.

ANSWER 105

The ordering procedures shall fallow FAR 16.505 procedures for fair opportunity. See Amendment 0004.
The RFP provides total level of effort per location in section L 5.2.2 which is total for all awards.

QUESTION 106
In accordance with the solicitation, and attachments, there are no CDRL’s or DIDs.

Question: Please provide CDRL and DID’s, or will they be issued at the task order level?



ANSWER 106
Contract Data Requirement Lists (CDRL) will be provided at the task order level.

QUESTION 107

In accordance with the solicitation, there are no FFP CLINs listed in section B, but in accordance with
section L, it is the government’s intention to issue and award FFP task orders.

Question: Please provide clarification on the use of FFP CLINs, or update section B to add FFP CLINs.
ANSWER 107

Please refer to answers 31 from “Question and Answer 2” document. Please ensure previous Q&A
documents are reviewed prior to submission of RFP questions to reduce the amount of repetitive
questions.

QUESTION 108

In accordance with the solicitation attachment 3 cost template, direct labor. The contractor is directed
to enter into cells highlighted in blue, all proposed direct labor rates (DLR) per hour by labor category for
each contract period.

Question: Because there are multiple locations, and costs will vary based on location, is the offeror to
submit composite rate(s) based on all locations on the individual tabs for NPS, NWC, and Naval
Academy?

What value is the government requesting in the blue section of the direct labor tab?
ANSWER 108

The offeror should take into account and propose rates that align to the locations. This is why within
the excel file there are hours broken out by location. See the individual worksheets for NPS,USNA and
NWC.

QUESTION 109

In accordance with the solicitation, labor categories, there is no information with respect to experience
level to build labor category and pricing.

Question: Because there is no information on experience level e.g. Junior, Mid, or Senior. Is the offeror
to make an assessment of experience level based on information in the solicitation, or is the
government going to provide a mandatory or recommended experience level to assist the offeror in
providing a compliant response?

ANSWER 109

The RFP provides this information on attachment 1. The Navy did not request different grades per labor
category.



QUESTION 110

In accordance with the solicitation section L paragraph 4.1.1. states “Offerors shall document its
experience in the following 14 critical support categories

Question: Please clarify if there are 14 or 17 critical areas.
ANSWER 110

Per the PWS Section 3.0, there are 17 critical areas. Amendment 0004 has revised Section L 4.1.1. to
reflect the correct number.

QUESTION 111
In accordance with the solicitation subcontractor submission requirements are not stated.

Question: Are subcontractors also required to provide original hard copy proposals in addition to the
Prime’s proposal submission? Additionally, please clarify how the prime is to submit direct and indirect
subcontractor costs.

ANSWER 111

Please refer to answers 20 and from “Question and Answer 2” document. Please ensure previous Q&A
documents are reviewed prior to submission of RFP questions to reduce the amount of repetitive
questions.

QUESTION 112

Will the Government consider providing incumbent contract numbers to help competitive analysis and
price realism?

ANSWER 112
This is a new requirement. Incumbent contract numbers are not available.
QUESTION 113

Will the Government consider hand delivered or courier delivered proposals? Proposal is currently due
on Monday 15 August, 2016. Because this is a hard copy delivery the offeror loses 4 days of proposal
preparation time because the proposal must be mailed by Friday 12 August 2016 to meet the Monday
15 August 2016 delivery date.

ANSWER 113

See answer 84 above. Hand deliveries will not be accepted.



QUESTION 114

In accordance with the solicitation, offers may submit up to three OPPDs as a prime; subcontractors may
submit up to two OPPDs.

Question: Does this option include other than “Major Subcontractors” (which would be subs that
propose $700K or more in cost)?

Is the 2-page limit per reference, or is it the governments intent to allow 10 pages total for 5 references,
not including 2-page introduction.

Will the Government accept CPARS evaluations in lieu of an Offeror’s Past Performance Data (OPPD) —
Attachment 2.

Is there a desired format to list all potential Past Performance references in Volume II?
ANSWER 114

Please refer to answers 17, 22 and 38 from “Question and Answer 2” document. Please ensure previous
Q&A documents are reviewed prior to submission of RFP questions to reduce the amount of repetitive
questions.

QUESTION 115

In accordance with the solicitation resumes are exclusive of the page count in the Technical Proposal
and in Section L, Staffing Plan. Paragraph 3.5.3 provides the contractor shall identify key personnel, but
no indication of how many are required and what roles they should include.

Question: Please clarify if the offeror is to make their own recommendations on key personnel.
ANSWER 115

Please refer to answers 39 and 46 from “Question and Answer 2” document. Please ensure previous
Q&A documents are reviewed prior to submission of RFP questions to reduce the amount of repetitive
questions.

QUESTION 116

Based on the number of questions, and a response due date of Monday 15 August, 2016. Ql-Solutions
respectfully requests an extension to the proposal delivery date.

From: 15 August 2016
To: 26 August 2016

ANSWER 116

Please review amendment 0003 that extended the RFP.



QUESTION 117

Our Major Subcontractor is submitting an OPPD to support our proposal. We want them to identify on
the OPPD that they are part of our Team - but there is no place on the government OPPD form to do
that. May we modify the government form to include a note that says "Company XYZ - Subcontractor
to Company ABC for N00244-16-R-0009"

ANSWER 117

Major subcontractors should identify the prime they are teaming with. You may insert this information
into the OPPD document.

QUESTION 118

IAM 8570/SECNAV INST 1543.2 state that "unless expressly provided for in the contract" that IT
Continuing Education requirements (40 hours/year) are the responsibility of the contractor (employee
or employer). Will this contract expressly provide for this CE labor to be a direct/billable charge?
ANSWER 118

It could at the task order level but not at the basic.

QUESTION 119

Executive Order 13706 07 Sept 2015 directs Federal contractors to provide 7 Days of annual "Paid Sick
Leave". Please confirm this is a specified requirement in this MAC contract.

ANSWER 119
The terms of the Executive order do not apply to this effort.
QUESTION 120

Will the government execute a Non-disclosure agreement regarding public release of information about
developmental work or curriculum at NPS without prior written approval?

ANSWER 120

All Conflict of interests and Non disclosures agreements shall be handles at the task order level not on
the basic contract.

QUESTION 121
If all personnel are cleared at the Secret level and will be issued CAC (once approved) will all base visits

(Classified and Unclassified) be passed via JPAS? If passed via JPAS- will the government provide a list of
all current/projected SMO codes and POC information to complete this action?



ANSWER 121

All classified visits are normally conducted through JPAS. The codes shall be provided upon issuance of
task order not at the basic contract level.

QUESTION 122

Several questions have been submitted regarding direct charging for either the IDIQ Program Manager
(PM) and/or a Task Order Manager. In accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and
the FAR, when the work of the IDIQ PM cannot be directly traced to any single TO/customer but rather
provides benefit to all, accounting practices support putting those costs into an indirect pool versus
direct. However, for a TO Manager, where the expense is traceable to only one task order, we would
expect that cost to be a direct charge to that effort. Given this approach, will the government allow for
a PM labor category to be used at the TO level?

ANSWER 122
No. Please see other answers relating to PM labor category.
QUESTION 123

Due to the breadth of the descriptions for the individual labor categories of the work to be performed
by each, there appears to be a wide discrepancy between the skills/expertise that will be available to the
customer with the limited experience base identified. For example, on the High Performance
Computing Systems Architect labor description, this position could conceivably be filled by a computer
savvy high school senior who has obtained the necessary certification. Whereas, normally to fill an
architect position, the candidate will have 10 years of general IT experience with an additional 4-6 years
of specialized experience in the architect discipline. Another example is in the Vulnerability/Threat
Specialist where the experience level required is not qualified to provide all the services listed, such as
“developing comprehensive total solutions to threat and/or vulnerability related problems.” The
government is at risk of receiving an inadequate, but solicitation compliant, workforce to meet critical
needs of the program. Additionally, Offerors will not exceed the labor requirements as this will result in
non-competitive price proposals. Given these examples and others that exist, will the government
modify the existing required labor categories and qualifications to reflect the senior qualifications for
each category or provide a stratification that distributes expertise over multiple skill levels within the
labor category (i.e. entry, intermediate, senior and SME).

ANSWER 123

The Labor categories and rates should be reflective of the technical proposal submitted on a best value
basis. The Navy does not anticipate providing any further information on differing grades within each
labor category.

QUESTION 124

When issuing FFP Orders, does the Government intend to exclusively issue FFP level of effort (LOE)
orders for IT services?



ANSWER 124
No, the task orders hould be completion type with specific tasks.
QUESTION 125

Does the Government intend to use this contract to procure short term or "surge" support services for
"roll-outs", installations or special requirements (e.g. Cybersecurity response)?

ANSWER 125
All may come up during the ordering period.
QUESTION 126

Are hourly rates for non-major subcontractors required as a stand-alone cost input in the Cost Proposal
Spreadsheet - or can those rates be blended with the Prime labor rates that are explained/justified in
the cost narrative? For example, Communications Analyst labor category requires support for
"installing and maintaining large-scale telecommunications/communications networks".

ANSWER 126
The offerors should breakout subcontractor labor form its own direct.
QUESTION 127

The labor rate for a short duration installation task would typically be much higher than the rate for a
full FTE of maintenance labor. Since Task Order rates must be "at or below" MAC rates - an offeror
might find it impossible to bid for an installation or surge support Task Order that was LOE.

ANSWER 127

Task orders are contemplated as FFP completion type not LOE. Any LOE should be issued as a CPFF
order. The contractor shall be allowed to propose a unique mix when proposing on a FFP task order in a
competitive environment.

QUESTION 128

Will a Task Order proposal that includes Direct PMO charges be considered non-responsive? If so,
should these direct PMO Labor Category names and rates be included in the MAC Cost Proposal?

ANSWER 128

Resulting tasks orders should be normally short in duration and not include the need for an onsite
program manager.



